
Official Board Packet 
 

 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

 
Board Meeting 

To be held at the offices of  
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

1005 Congress Avenue – Suite B-10 Conference Room 
Austin Texas 78701 

 
 

Friday, April 13, 2007 
10:30 a.m. 



 
 

BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

To be held at the offices of  
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

1005 Congress Avenue – Suite B-10 Conference Room 
Austin, Texas 78701 

April 13, 2007 at 10:30 am 
 

AGENDA 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL                                               Jerry Romero 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM                                                           Chair 
 
The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the following: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
REPORTS 

♦ President’s Report                                                  David Long 
♦ Executive Vice President’s Report                                                                         Katherine Closmann  
♦ Single Family Lending Report                                          Paige McGilloway 
♦ Multifamily Lending Report                                       David Danenfelzer 

♦ $8 million in multifamily private activity bond volume cap now available/Submit Response to          
RFP by April 27, 2007. 

♦ Marketing and Development Report                                                Janie Taylor 
♦ Legislative Report 

♦ Financial Report                                             Melinda Smith 
♦ Presentation of Financial Statements and Budget Report 

     
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on March 9, 2007. 
 
Tab 2  Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution to Amend the Alternative Lending Program 

(also known as the Single Family Affordable Homeownership Program for Texas) to Permit Access to such 
Program's funds by the Corporation's program known as the Single Family Interim Construction/Land 
Acquisition Loan Program. 

 
Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding the Submission of a calendar 

year 2007 Application for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notice of Intention to Issue Bonds and State 
Bond Application to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Rainbow/Texas Portfolio Project and other matters 
incident and related thereto. 

 
Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

Investment Policy. 
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s 

Investment Broker Listing. 
 
Tab 6 Presentation and Discussion of the Corporation’s 2006 Annual Report. 
 
Tab 7 Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Approval to Confirm Laura Ross (previously Laura Smith) as 

Secretary of the Corporation. 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters – Texas Government Code § 551.071 
Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property – Texas Government Code § 551.072 
Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation – Texas 
Government Code § 551.073 
Personnel Matters – Texas Government Code § 551.074 
Implementation of security personnel or devices – Texas Government Code § 551.076 
Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code 
 
OPEN MEETING 
 



 
 

Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Meeting. 
 
ADJOURN 
  
Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Laura Ross, ADA Responsible Employee, at 
512-477-3555, x 400 or Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a 
later stated time, if and to the extent allowed by law.  If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting and 
reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting will be held in the same location as this meeting.  Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed meeting during the meeting in accordance with the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the Board (and any other authorized 
persons) in closed meeting. 



President’s Report 
 

Discussion 



Executive Vice President’s Report 
 

Discussion 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation's
Professional Educators Home Loan Program Series 2007A

As of February 21, 2007 through April 3, 2007

Month
# of 

Loans

% of
Total

Loans
Total

Originated At a Glance 
Feb-07 23 16% 2,694,624$ Total Amount Originated $17,470,054
Mar-07 114 81% 14,214,930$ Average Annual Income $42,231
Apr-07 4 3% 560,500$ Average Purchase Price $127,148

Totals 141 100% 17,470,054$ Average Loan Amount $123,901
Average Household Size 2

Lender Originated # of Loans Total % New/Existing
Cornerstone Mortgage Company $2,543,376.00 19 13% Existing 64%

Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. $2,191,486.00 20 14% New 36%
Universal American Mortgage Co $1,569,007.00 11 8% Professional Breakdown

Rocky Mountain Mortgage Co. $1,221,390.00 9 6% Teacher 98.58%
Wells Fargo Home Mtg- $1,183,101.00 9 6% Teacher Aide 0.00%

Hammersmith Financial, L.P. $1,166,550.00 8 6% School Counselor 0.71%
Market Street Mortgage Corp. $1,111,722.00 8 6% School Nurse 0.71%

WR Starkey Mortgage $1,089,655.00 9 6% School Librarian 0.00%
Service First Mortgage $755,369.00 7 5% Type of Loan

Wachovia Mortgage Corporation $635,985.00 5 4% FHA 48%
DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $604,998.00 4 3% Conventional 38%

CTX Mortgage Company, LLC $587,295.00 5 4% VA 1.42%
Home Loan Corporation $509,710.00 4 3% USDA-RD 12.06%

Valley Mortgage Co., Inc. $405,236.00 5 4% Ethnicity
First National Bank Texas $316,139.00 3 2% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.00%

Willow Bend Mortgage $258,400.00 2 1% Asian or Pacific Islander 0.71%
Colonial Savings, FA $235,188.00 2 1% Black 14.18%

Countrywide - Wholesale $231,657.00 2 1% Hispanic 6.38%
PrimeLending $183,500.00 2 1% White 65.25%

Hometrust Mortgage Company $178,400.00 2 1% Other 13.48%
R. H. Lending, Inc $133,000.00 1 1% Not Defined 0.00%

First Continental Mortgage Ltd $124,990.00 1 1% Top Originating Counties # of Loans
New South Federal Savings Bank $119,000.00 1 1% Harris 38

First Horizon Home Lns-Sunbelt $79,900.00 1 1% Dallas 16
American Bank - TX $35,000.00 1 1% Tarrant 13

Total Committed $17,470,054 141 100% El Paso 10
Bexar 7

Total Allocation $35,000,000 Fort Bend 6
Remaining to Commit $17,529,946 Travis 5

Williamson 4
Hidalgo 4

Kaufman 3
Collin 3

Brazoria 3
Tom Green 2
Montgomery 2

Lubbock 2
Hunt 2

Guadalupe 2
Galveston 2

Denton 2
Cameron 2

Bell 2



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation's
Professional Educators Home Loan Program Series 2007A

As of February 21, 2007 through April 3, 2007

Monthly Origination

23 114 4 141
$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

$18,000,000

$20,000,000

Feb-07 Mar-07 Apr-07 Totals

Bond Closed
February 21, 2007

Occupational Origination Amounts

$17,218,654.00

$151,500.00$99,900.00

$0.00

$0.00

Teacher
Teacher Aide
School Counselor
School Librarian
School Nurse



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Report on Multifamily Programs  

March 9, 2007 
 

Agenda Item:  
Multifamily Lending Report 
 
Summary: 
Staff has focused its efforts over the past month on the Corporation’s Private Activity 
Bond Program. A great deal of effort has been put into ironing out wrinkles in the 
Corporation’s preliminary allocation of $36 million in private activity bonds to Rainbow 
Housing Assistance Corporation. We have held several conference calls with the 
applicant, bond holders, bond counsel and financial advisors to ensure that this 
development can move forward as planned. Additional information about this 
development is included in the board book and will be discussed with the agenda item to 
consider an inducement resolution.  
 
Unfortunately, the Corporation was informed by the NuRock Companies, that the 
preliminary award of bond cap of $8 million was not sufficient to secure site control over 
any properties prior to the March 31st, 2007 deadline provided for in their award. These 
funds will be re-released and the initial deadline for applicants to bring proposals in 
response to the Request for Proposals to the staff is April 27, 2007 for consideration by 
the Board at the May board meeting.  The Request for Proposals will remain open until 
all volume cap has been preliminarily awarded.   
 
On other fronts, staff has begun reviewing the Corporation’s 501(c)3 bond program 
guidelines and hopes to bring an update policy back to the Board in May or June. We 
have also been working with several nonprofit groups on multifamily developments that 
could utilize the Corporation’s direct lending program. Finally, staff has also been 
working on the creation of an acquisition and interim construction loan program to utilize 
funds available to the Corporation through equity investments from banking partners.  
 



Marketing and Development Report 
 

Discussion 



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
COMPARISON OF BUDGETED TO ACTUAL OPERATING ACTIVITY

(For the Six Months Ending February 28, 2007)

% of Annual
Revenues Budget Actual Budget

Servicing Revenue, Net of Subservicer Fees 427,000           246,997            57.84%

Multifamily Revenue 329,000           193,388            58.78%

Federal Home Loan Bank Note Income 110,000           51,535              46.85%

Asset Oversight Revenue 650,000           265,089            40.78%

Investment Revenue 160,000           157,395            98.37% j
Single Family 150,000           35,166              23.44%
TOTAL REVENUES 1,826,000        949,570            52.00%

Expenditures
Salaries & Payroll Related Expenditures 1,014,000        481,541            47.49%

Professional Services - Legal, Audit & IT 210,000           87,969              41.89%

Office & Equipment Lease 134,000           65,200              48.66%

Travel & Meals 98,000             26,584              27.13%

Interest on FHLB/Wells Fargo CDC Notes 75,000             43,218              57.62%

Sponsorships & Grants 12,500             3,950                31.60%

Marketing 30,500             3,995                13.10%

Insurance 23,500             11,445              48.70%

Professional Dues & Training 21,000             4,891                23.29%

Communication 16,000             9,275                57.97%

Bank Fees & Charges 10,000             4,847                48.47%

Office Supplies 9,000               1,785                19.83%

Publications, Subscriptions, Office Maintenance 4,000               2,104                52.60%

Freight, Delivery & Postage 7,500               3,763                50.17%

Furniture, Equipment, & Software 10,000             9,967                99.67% k
Printing 3,000               625                   20.83%

Program and Loan Administration 7,000               706                   10.09%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,685,000        761,865            45.21%

NET INCOME 141,000           187,705            133.12%

Target Percentage = 50%

FY 2007



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
COMPARISON OF BUDGETED TO ACTUAL OPERATING ACTIVITY

(For the Six Months Ending February 28, 2007)

Explanation of Budget Variances:

j Revenue projections for Investment Income have been revised to $260,000 as budgeted revenue was too low.

Investment revenue as a percentage of the revised estimate equals 60% compared to the target of 50%.

k The majority of the Corporation's fixed asset purchases were made during the first four months of FY 2007.  

The Corporation is not anticipating any significant additional purchases through year end.













































































































BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

Held at the Offices of 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

1005 Congress Avenue – Suite B-10 Conference Room 
Austin Texas 78701 

March 9, 2007 at 10:30 am 
 

Summary of Minutes 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call  
Certification of Quorum 
 
The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) was called to order by Jerry Romero, Chair, at 10:35 a.m., on March 9, 
2007, at the offices of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, 1005 Congress Avenue 
– Suite B-10 Conference Room, Austin, TX 78701.  Roll Call certified that a quorum was 
present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Jerry Romero, Chair  
Thomas A. Leeper, Vice Chair 
Charles G. Rencher, Member 
 
Members Absent 
 
Jesse A. Coffey, Member  
Jo Van Hovel, Member 
 
Staff Present 
 
David Long, President 
Katherine Closmann, Executive Vice President 
Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer 
Paige McGilloway, Single Family Programs Manager 
David Danenfelzer, Multifamily Programs Manager 
Janie Taylor, Manager of Marketing and Development 
Pat Corser, Asset Oversight & Compliance Manager 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 
 
Public Comment 
  
No public comment was given 
 
Special Guests 
 
Mary Koelling, First Southwest Company 
Elena Pienado, Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) 
Chris Spelbring, Morgan Keegan 
Barton Withrow, RBC Dain Rauscher 
 



  

 2 

Reports 
 
President’s Report 
 
Mr. Long began by reporting that staff had met with different legislators at the Capitol to discuss 
legislation that impacted the Corporation.  Mr. Long informed the Board that he would be giving 
testimony before the House Subcommittee on Housing the following Thursday.  Mr. Long stated 
that staff had met with and made a presentation to the Bond Review Board (“BRB”) regarding 
the Corporation’s upcoming programs. 
 
Executive Vice President’s Report 
 
Ms. Closmann began by stating that staff was continuing to look at PILOT payment options. Ms. 
Closmann reported that she had been working with the trustee to determine whether money was 
available in the accounts to make the payments, and they had concluded that there wasn’t.  Ms. 
Closmann stated that the payments were cash flow obligations and the properties weren’t cash 
flowing. Ms. Closmann informed the Board that she had been contacted by several taxing entities 
with inquiries about the payments.  Ms. Closmann stated that she would continue looking at 
payment options and would have more to report in the future months. 
 
Ms. Closmann then turned the Board’s attention to the default notices that were provided at the 
beginning of the meeting.  Ms. Closmann proceeded to go through the notices for the Board’s 
benefit.  Ms. Closmann informed the Board that she would be giving a presentation relating to 
the default notices at the BRB meeting the following Tuesday. Discussion followed. 
 
Single Family Lending Report 
 
Ms. McGilloway deferred her report to Tab 2. 
 
Multifamily Lending Report 
 
Mr. Danenfelzer began by informing the Board that since the Board had awarded the funds 
through the Corporation’s Private Activity Bond (“PAB”) Program, staff had notified the 
applicants of the awards, produced reservation detail packages and continued to maintain regular 
communications with the awardees.  Mr. Danenfelzer noted that he anticipated further action 
would be brought before the Board for approval at the April meeting. 
 
Mr. Danenfelzer also stated that he had been working to re-establish the Corporation’s Direct 
Lending Program.  Mr. Danenfelzer informed the Board that he had been in communication with 
a number of people who were interested in the program.  Mr. Danenfelzer stated that a new 
application process had been developed and both financial partners, Community Development 
Trust of New York and Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, had been informed of the staff’s 
intent to reinitiate the program.  Mr. Danenfelzer noted that a new marketing strategy would be 
developed focusing on strategic alliances, partnerships and direct marketing to rural and small 
community developers.  Mr. Danenfelzer also noted that materials and information on the 
website would be updated over the next few weeks. 
 
Mr. Romero inquired as to the total amount of funds awarded to the projects and Mr. 
Danenfelzer stated that the total was approximately $44 million, which equated to the entire 
volume cap allotted to the Corporation.   



  

 3 

 
Following Mr. Danenfelzer’s report, Ms. Closmann introduced Ms. Corser to the Board as the 
new Asset Oversight and Compliance Manager.  Mr. Romero welcomed Ms. Corser to the 
Corporation. 
 
Marketing and Development Report 
 
Ms. Taylor began by discussing the surveys that were conducted regarding the Nursing Faculty 
Home Loan Program (“Nursing Program”) and the proposed Allied Health Faculty Program.  
Ms. McGilloway stated that the survey regarding the Nursing Program had been conducted as a 
means to see where the program could be changed to better assist those that were eligible.  Ms. 
McGilloway noted that the results of the survey found many of the targeted professionals were 
already homeowners and were well over the income limits allowed under the program. Ms. 
McGilloway informed the Board that the results had been provided to the legislators for their 
reference.   
 
Ms. Taylor then referred the Board to the handout from Gallery Watch and noted that Senator 
Nelson had filed Senate Bill 202 that created a new program for Allied Health Professionals with 
the same structure and amount as the Nursing Program. Ms. Taylor noted that staff had met with 
Senator Nelson’s staff where the new program, as well as Nursing Program was discussed.  Ms. 
Taylor informed the Board that a survey was then done regarding the new program and the 
results had been given to Senator Nelson’s office. As a result, Ms. Taylor informed the Board 
that Senate Bill 1185 had been filed which combined the Nursing Program and Allied Health 
Faculty Program with the Professional Educators Home Loan Program (“Professional Educators 
Program”) and also moved their allotted $5 million each to the Professional Educators Program 
for a program total of $35 million.  Ms. Taylor then referred the Board to the packet that was 
handed out regarding current legislation affecting the Corporation. Discussion followed. 
 
Ms. Taylor turned the Board’s attention to marketing. Ms. Taylor reported that an article about 
the Professional Educators Program had been included in the spring issue of a publication put out 
by the Association of Texas Professional Educators (“ATPE”) and interest had been generated 
because of it.  Ms. Taylor also noted that she would be putting a half page ad in their summer 
issue which she hoped would trigger more calls and interest.  Ms. Taylor informed the Board that 
she and Ms. McGilloway would be participating in ATPE’s annual conference in March.  Ms. 
Taylor also noted that a story had been included in the Texas Federation of Teachers’ weekly 
newsletter. Ms. Taylor made the Board aware that she had been in contact with the Texas Jail 
Association (“TJA”) which was comprised of 95% county jailers, a group eligible for the 
Firefighter and Law Enforcement or Security Officers Home Loan Program (“Homes for Texas 
Heroes Program”).  Ms. Taylor noted that staff would be attending TJA’s conference in May to 
promote the program.  Ms. Taylor stated that she was in talks with TJA staff about including 
information on the program in one of their newsletters.  Ms. Taylor also noted other conferences 
that staff would be attending. 
 
Mr. Romero inquired if there were professional organizations for EMS and juvenile correctional 
officers.  Ms. Taylor noted that the group overseeing the juvenile correctional officers was the 
Texas Youth Commission and that EMS did not have a specific group, although a section under 
the Department of Health worked with them and that she was already in talks with them about 
the possibility of marketing through their newsletter and magazine. 
 



  

 4 

Mr. Rencher inquired if the full allocation for the Homes for Texas Heroes Program had been 
used and Ms. McGilloway stated that $1 million remained in the 2006 program.  Mr. Rencher 
inquired about marketing strategies for the programs over the next year and Ms. McGilloway and 
Ms. Taylor discussed the marketing plan for targeting groups designated under the programs. 
 
Ms. Taylor informed the Board that the Corporation’s updated website would go live that 
afternoon. 
 
Financial Report 
 
Ms. Smith began by turning the Board’s attention to the budget report and noting that as of 
January 31, 2007, the Corporation had a cash profit of $186,788.  Mr. Romero inquired about the 
Investment Revenue and Ms. Smith explained that the Investment Revenue line item had been 
increased from $127,000 to $260,000 based on actual revenue receipts and a projection done by 
Ms. Patterson of Patterson & Associates.  Ms. Smith noted that the Single Family Revenue 
which was at 23% had increased to 42% after the receipt of issuer fees at the beginning of 
February.  Ms. Smith turned the Board’s attention to expenditures and noted that the Corporation 
was right on or below budget with everything except the furniture, equipment and software line 
item which was due to the purchase made at the beginning of the year. 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board 

Meeting held on January 19, 2007. 
 
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on January 19, 
2007.  Mr. Rencher seconded the motion.   Motion passed.  
 
Tab 2 Presentation and Discussion of the Texas State Affordable Housing 

Corporation Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 2007A 
(Professional Educators Home Loan Program) Transaction. 

 
Ms. McGilloway began by stating that the 2007A program had been priced on January 30, 2007, 
and closed on February 22, 2007, with an initial release of $35 million of which $6.4 had already 
been originated.  Ms. McGilloway refreshed the Board’s memory regarding the Corporation’s 
new master servicer, Countrywide, and announced how pleased she was with the service they 
were providing.  Ms. McGilloway stated that the trainings they had hosted had gone well and 
that currently there were 46 lenders signed up for the program.  Mr. Romero inquired if the state 
was covered well by the lenders and Ms. McGilloway stated that it was and that with 
Countrywide, brokers could participate in the program which would go to further increase the 
pool of lenders the borrowers would have available to them. Mr. Romero inquired how this 
would be marketed and Ms. McGilloway stated that Countrywide would do this on the 
Corporation’s behalf.  Mr. Romero inquired about broker qualifications and the review process 
and Ms. McGilloway stated that Countrywide took care of this on behalf of the Corporation.  Ms. 
McGilloway stated that after a period of time if no loans were originated by the broker then they 
would no longer be approved. 
 
Mr. Withrow with RBC Dain Rauscher introduced himself to the Board.  Mr. Withrow stated 
that the pricing of the transaction had gone very well.  Mr. Romero inquired after the amount 
issued under the 2007A transaction and Mr. Withrow confirmed that the 2007A-1 was for $35 
million and that when 2007A-2 was released it would be for the balance remaining. Mr. Withrow 
referred the Board to the pricing book and proceeded to go through and explain what had 



  

 5 

occurred with the 2007A transaction.  Mr. Romero inquired about the Corporation’s contribution 
to the transaction and Mr. Withrow stated that it was $60,000.  Mr. Withrow continued to go 
through the pricing book.  Discussion followed. 
 
Ms. McGilloway thanked Mr. Withrow for his presentation. 
 
Tab 3 Presentation and Discussion of the Texas State Affordable Housing 

Corporation Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 2007C (Fire 
Fighter and Law Enforcement or Security Officer Home Loan Program) 
Transaction. 

 
Ms. McGilloway stated that as of today there was roughly $1 million left in the 2006 program.  
Ms. McGilloway stated that the pricing of the 2007 program would occur on March 27, 2007, 
and the closing would occur on May 2, 2007.  Ms. McGilloway noted the projected rate and 
issuer contribution.  Mr. Romero inquired whether a lower rate would result in more people 
participating in the program and Ms. McGilloway stated that she felt the grant that came with the 
loan was more of a draw then the rate.  Discussion followed regarding this issue. 
 
Tab 4 Presentation and Discussion of the Corporation’s Single Family Drawdown 

Bond Program. 
 
Ms. McGilloway introduced Mr. Spelbring with Morgan Keegan, the Corporation’s Underwriter 
for the Single Family Drawdown Bond Program.  Mr. Spelbring informed the Board that he had 
met with Corporation staff about the program to explain its framework, and how it would be 
administered.  Mr. Spelbring stated that he and Ms. McGilloway would be speaking the 
following week and putting together a timeline for the program.  Mr. Romero inquired whether 
this program required further approval from Board and Ms. McGilloway stated that it didn’t.  
Discussion followed regarding when the Corporation would be able to issue funds through the 
program. 
 
Closed Meeting 
 
Mr. Romero, Board Chair, called the Board into closed session at 11:40 am.  The Board came 
out of closed session and into open session at 11:45 am. 
 
Open Meeting 
 
The Board of Directors came out of closed session and into open session at 11:45 am. Mr. 
Romero noted that in closed session the Board had ratified the evaluation of the President of the 
Corporation and would be taking appropriate actions to compensate him accordingly.  After 
discussion, it was determined that the next Board Meeting would be held on April 13, 2007, at 
10:30 am. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Mr. Rencher made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Leeper seconded the motion. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
The Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation Board Meeting was officially adjourned at 
11:50 am. 



  

 6 

 
Respectfully submitted by________________________________________________ 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 



 
3492703v2  1 

RESOLUTION NO.  ___ 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF THE 
ALTERNATIVE LENDING PROGRAM TO ALLOW ACCESS TO 
ALTERNATIVE LENDING PROGRAM FUNDS BY THE SINGLE FAMILY 
INTERIM CONSTRUCTION/LAND ACQUISITION PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) has been 
duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y, Section 2306.551 et seq., as amended (the 
“Act”), for the purpose of facilitating the provision of housing and making affordable loans to 
individuals and families of low, very low, and extremely low income; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation previously implemented an 
Alternative Lending Program (also known as “The Affordable Homeownership Program for 
Texas”) (the “Program”) pursuant to Resolution 03-11 adopted on December 10, 2003, which 
provides for down payment assistance to individuals and families that are not able to access 
traditional lending markets due to prior credit issues or insufficient credit history or both in a 
total amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (“Program Funds”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that it is desirable to amend the 
Program to permit access to Program Funds by the Corporation’s program known as the Single 
Family Interim Construction/Land Acquisition Loan Program; and   
 
 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that this Resolution be adopted; 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION: 
 
 Section 1. Approval of Amendment to Program.  The Corporation hereby approves 
the amendment of the Program (as amended, the “Amended Program) to allow access to the 
Program Funds by the Corporation’s program known as the Single Family Interim 
Construction/Land Acquisition Loan Program and authorizes the Interim Manager (or any future 
president or chief executive officer of the Corporation) to proceed with the finalization of the 
terms and conditions of the Amended Program.     
 
 Section 2. Contracts with Third Parties.  The Corporation is authorized to enter into 
(and the Interim Manager or any future president or chief executive officer is authorized to sign) 
contracts with third parties..   
 
 Section 3. Use of the Corporation's Funds.   The use of remaining Program Funds in 
order to implement and operate the Amended Program is hereby authorized. 
 



 
3492703v2  2 

Section 4. Prior Resolution.  Resolution 03-11 shall remain in effect except to the 
extent modified by this Resolution. 
 
 Section 5. Public Purposes of Program.  The Corporation hereby finds, determines, 
recites and declares that the adoption and implementation of the Amended Program will promote 
the public purposes set forth in the Act, including, without limitation, assisting persons of low, 
very low, and extremely low income in acquiring and owning adequate, safe, sanitary and 
affordable housing. 
 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and 
upon its adoption. 

 
Section 7. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 13th day of April, 2007. 
 
 TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING  
 CORPORATION 
 
 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 Jerry Romero 
 Chair, Board of Directors 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura J. Ross 
Corporate Secretary  



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Board Agenda Item for Multifamily Programs  

April 13, 2007 
 

Agenda Item:  
Resolution Regarding the Submission of a calendar year 2007 Application for Allocation of 
Private Activity Bonds, Notice of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond Application to the 
Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse Expenditures with 
Proceeds of Future Debt for the Rainbow/Texas Portfolio Project 
 
Summary: 
On January 19, 2007 the Corporation’s Board of Directors preliminarily awarded approximately 
$35 million in private activity bond volume cap to Rainbow Housing Assistance Corp (the 
“Borrower”). The Borrower’s proposal identifies 13 properties, totaling 1014 units of housing 
that will be purchased and rehabilitated. All of the properties are being purchased as a pooled 
transaction from Hunt Properties, from El Paso, Texas. All 13 properties meet the Corporation’s 
targeted housing need for rehabilitation of multifamily properties. Additionally, 3 of the 
properties are rural developments. The transaction will involve more than $64 million dollars in 
acquisition, rehabilitation and debt assumption costs for an average cost of $63,000 per unit. The 
financing includes private activity bonds, 4% housing tax credits and federal refinancing.  
 
All of the properties are currently under U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) Section 8 Housing Assistance Program contracts.  A summary of the properties involved 
in this Application follows:  
 
Property Name City Units 
Chaparral Village Odessa, TX 80 
Cove Village  Copperas Cove, TX 50 
El Nido Apartments El Paso, TX 104 
Garden Apartments Lubbock, TX 62 
High Plains Lubbock, TX 50 
Jose Antonio Escajeda Apartments El Paso, TX 94 
Los Ebanos Apartments Brownsville, TX 65 
Peppertree Acres Fort Worth, TX 148 
River Park Village East Lampasas, TX 50 
Salem Village Victoria, TX 105 
Sierra Vista El Paso, TX 106 
Spring Terrace Amarillo, TX 50 
Win-Lin Village Amarillo, TX 50 
Totals  1014 
 
The Borrower has completed 12 bond financed properties and controls more than 4,000 units in 
five states. Of this total, 1,764 units are located in the State of Texas. The Borrower has 
committed to providing a wide array of supportive services, energy efficiency upgrades and a 
superior standard of living to all of the subject properties.   
 
 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Board Agenda Item for Multifamily Programs  

April 13, 2007 
 

Today, the board will be considering the merits of the Borrower’s reservation detail package and 
possible adoption of an inducement resolution not to exceed $36 million in private activity bonds 
to be reserved for the Rainbow Housing Assistance Corporation’s pooled transaction.  If 
approved, the Corporation will make application to the Texas Bond Review Board to reserve the 
full amount of volume cap for this development.  
 
Feasibility Analysis 
Staff has completed a review of the financial structure and feasibility of the proposed project 
using information provided by the Borrower. After reviewing the purchase price, projected 
operating expenses and projected income for the properties, staff believes that the project would 
be financially feasible as proposed. At this time, staff has not had access to market analysis or 
property condition assessments. It should be noted that staff will review these documents prior to 
returning to the board for final approval of the bonds, and to determine whether there is 
sufficient market demand for the properties, and whether the projected rehabilitation costs are 
sufficient to bring the properties in line with the Corporation’s rehabilitation standards.  
 
Community Support 
Staff did not receive any letter of support for the proposed properties from local or state officials 
with the reservation package. The borrower did supply proxy votes on behalf of a sufficient 
number of residents of the properties to indicate broad support among the residents for the 
proposed rehabilitation. Staff will be requesting copies of all notifications to and letters from 
local officials during the public hearing process. Staff will attend, along with a representative of 
the Borrower, hearings in each of the nine affected communities.  
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
After reviewing the reservation detail package, staff recommends that the Board approve the 
Inducement Resolution regarding the submission of a calendar year 2007 Application for 
Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notice of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond 
Application to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Rainbow/Texas Portfolio Project. 
 
 
 
 
 



45896661.1/10702692 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-____ 

RESOLUTION Regarding the Submission of a calendar year 2007 
Application for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notice of 
Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond Application to the Texas 
Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Rainbow/Texas 
Portfolio Project 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
(the "Corporation") desires to submit a calendar year 2007 Application for Allocation of Private 
Activity Bonds (the "Application") to the Texas Bond Review Board in connection with qualified 
residential rental housing bonds (the �Bonds�) relating to the projects referenced in Exhibit A
attached hereto (the �Project�); 

WHEREAS, the Corporation intends to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds to the 
borrowers referenced in Exhibit A (collectively, the "Borrower"), which will use the proceeds for 
the Project and further intends to make certain capital expenditures with respect to the Project 
and currently desires and expects to reimburse the capital expenditures with proceeds of such 
debt; 

WHEREAS, under Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 (the "Regulation"), to fund such reimbursement 
with proceeds of tax-exempt obligations, the Corporation must declare its expectation to make 
such reimbursement; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to preserve the ability of the Borrower to reimburse 
the capital expenditures with proceeds of tax-exempt obligations. 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make all other appropriate filings and requests to the 
Texas Bond Review Board to enable the Corporation to issue the Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION: 

1. That the President of the Corporation or any officer of the Corporation is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver one or more 2007 Applications for Allocation of 
Private Activity Bonds to the Texas Bond Review Board in connection with requesting an 
allocation for the Bonds, together with any documents, certificates or instruments related 
thereto. 

2. That the President of the Corporation or any other officer of the Corporation is hereby 
authorized and directed to file with the Texas Bond Review Board one or more Notices of Intent 
to Issue Bonds and one or more State Bond Applications in connection with the Bonds and such 
officers are further authorized and directed to request that the applications be approved by the 
Executive Director of the Texas Bond Review Board in accordance with Section 181.9(e) of the 
Rules of the Texas Bond Review Board. 

3. That the President of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to take any and 
all other actions necessary or incidental to securing the private activity bond allocations and the 
approval of the Bonds from the Texas Bond Review Board. 

4. That the Corporation reasonably expects that the Borrower will reimburse capital 
expenditures with respect to the Project with proceeds of debt hereafter to be incurred by the 
Corporation, and that this resolution shall constitute a declaration of official intent under the 
Regulation.  The maximum principal amount of obligations expected to be issued for the Project 
is $36,000,000. 



45896661.1/10702692 2

PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this April 13, 2007. 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING CORPORATION 

______________________________
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

______________________________
Secretary 



45896661.1/10702692 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT 



Exhibit A 

 Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 Multifamily Private Activity Bond Program - Rainbow Housing Assistance Corporation, Texas Portfolio  

 Property Chaparral Village Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $4,535,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Chaparral, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 80 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 1411 S. Grant Avenue,  
 Odessa, Ector County, Texas; and rehabilitation of units of low income housing.  

 Property Cove Village Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $1,260,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Cove, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 50 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 1102 Golf Course Road,  
 Copperas Cove, Coryell County, Texas. 

 Property El Nido Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $5,150,000.00 
 Owner RHAC- El Nido, LLC  to be formed, or other entity Units 104 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 104-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 204 Alicia Drive, El  
 Paso, El Paso County, Texas. 

 Property Garden Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $1,405,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Garden, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 62 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 62-unit affordable multifamily rental housing project located at 1340 65th Drive,  
 Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas 

 Property High Plains Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $2,070,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-High Plains, LLC, to be formed, or other  Units 50 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-units multifamily affordable rental project located at 1607 Lola, Lubbock, Lubbock  
 County, Texas. 

 Property Jose Antonio Escajeda Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $4,360,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-JAE, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 94 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 94-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 204 Alicia Drive, El  
 Paso, El Paso County, Texas. 

 Thursday, April 05, 2007 Page 1 of 3 



 

 Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 Multifamily Private Activity Bond Program - Rainbow Housing Assistance Corporation, Texas Portfolio  

 Property Los Ebanos Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $2,120,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Los Ebanos, LLC, to be formed, or other  Units 65 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 65-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 2133 Barnard Road,  
 Brownsville, Cameron County, Texas 

 Property Peppertree Acres Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $4,250,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Peppertree, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 148 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 148-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 6555 Sheridan Circle,  
 Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas 

 Property River Park Village East Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $850,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-River Park, LLC, to Units 50 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-units multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 1309 Central Texas  
 Expressway, Lampasas, Lampasas County, Texas. 

 Property Salem Village Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $2,500,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Salem, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 105 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 105-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 5201 John Stockbauer  
 Drive, Victoria, Texas. 

 Property Sierra Vista Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $3,460,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Sierra, LLC, to be Units 106 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 106-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 10501 Montwood, El  
 Paso, El Paso County, Texas. 

 Property Spring Terrace Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $1,640,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Spring, LLC, to be formed, or other entity Units 50 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 2600 S. Spring Street,  
 Amarillo, Randall County, Texas. 

 Thursday, April 05, 2007 Page 2 of 3 



 

 Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 Multifamily Private Activity Bond Program - Rainbow Housing Assistance Corporation, Texas Portfolio  

 Property Win-Lin Village Apartments 
 Borrower Rainbow - Texas, LP, the sole general partner of  Bond Amount $1,190,000.00 
 Owner RHAC-Win-Lin, LLC, to Units 50 
 Activity Notes Acquisition and rehabilitation of a 50-unit multifamily affordable rental housing project located at 5700 Wabash Street,  
 Amarillo, Randall County, Texas.  

 Total Bond Amount $34,790,000.00 Total Units 1014 

 Contact Person Chris Porter Contact Address 556 Commercial Street, Suite 200 
 Contact City San Francisco Contact State CA Contact Zip 94111 
 Contact Phone 415-788-0700 

 Thursday, April 05, 2007 Page 3 of 3 



 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
 

APRIL 13, 2007 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
I. POLICY 

II. SCOPE 

III. PRUDENCE 

IV. OBJECTIVES 

V. INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

VI. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

VII. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

VIII. AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

X. UNAUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS  

XI. DIVERSIFICATION 

XII. EFFECT OF LOSS OF RATING 

XIII. COLLATERALIZATIONS 

XIV. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 

XV. INTERNAL CONTROLS 

XVI. REPORTING 

XVII. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 

ATTACHMENT A: CERTIFICATION OF INVESTMENT POLICY 



 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY  

 
I. POLICY 

It is the policy of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) to invest public funds in a manner which will fulfill, by priority, 
the following objectives: 

A. Safety of principal; 

B. Sufficient liquidity to meet the Corporation's cash flow needs; 

C. Diversification to reduce market and credit risk; 

D. A market rate of return for the risk assumed; and 

E. Compliance with all applicable state statutes governing the 
investment of public funds, including (i) the Corporation's enabling 
legislation, Texas Government Code, Section 2306, Subchapter Y, and 
(ii) the Public Funds Investment Act (the “Act”), Texas Government 
Code, Section 2256.  

II. SCOPE 

This Investment Policy (“Policy”) applies to all financial assets of the 
Corporation, except for any promissory notes payable to the Corporation. 

III. PRUDENCE 

A. Investments shall be made with judgment and care under 
circumstances then prevailing which persons of prudence, discretion and 
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not for 
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety and liquidity 
of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. 

B. The standard of prudence to be used by the Investment Officer shall 
be the “prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of 
managing an overall portfolio. Investment Officers (hereinafter defined) 
acting in accordance with the Policy and written procedures and exercising 
due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for an individual security's 
credit risk or market price changes, provided that deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken 
to control adverse developments. 



2 

IV. OBJECTIVES 

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a 
rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles commensurate 
with the Corporation's investment risk constraints and cash flow needs. A 
maximum dollar-weighted average maturity will be six (6) months. A 
benchmark for risk in the portfolio shall be the six-month U.S. Treasury Bill. 
The following are the primary objectives of investment activities in order of 
priority: 

1. Safety of Principal 

Preservation and safety of principal is the foremost objective of 
the investment program.  Investments of the Corporation shall 
be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital. The principal will be protected by 
limiting credit risk through purchase of high credit quality 
securities and limiting interest rate risk through a structured 
portfolio which addresses projected cash flow requirements. 

2. Liquidity 

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to pay 
liabilities or the inability to sell a security for needed cash. To 
protect liquidity needs the Corporation will prepare a cash flow 
analysis to direct investments and limit its maximum final stated 
maturity to three years. The Corporation's investment portfolio 
shall contain a liquidity buffer to meet all unanticipated cash 
flow needs. In addition, securities with active secondary or 
resale markets will be used to meet unanticipated liabilities. 

3. Diversification 

The Corporation shall diversify its portfolio to eliminate the risk 
of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific 
maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of investments. 
Investment shall always be selected that provide for stability of 
income and reasonable liquidity. 

4. Yield 

The Corporation's investment portfolio shall be designed with 
the objective of attaining a reasonable market rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the investment risk constraints and cash flow needs of the 
Corporation. Return on investment is of less importance than 
the safety and liquidity of the investments. Reasonable returns 
shall be obtained through competitive bidding on all transactions 



 

 3 

and comparative analysis of all market alternatives available 
within the parameters of this Policy. 

V. Investment Strategy 

A. The Corporation may commingle its operating funds for maximum 
investment efficiency and economy of scale. Interest will be distributed as 
applicable among the funds. The authorized securities, investments or pools 
utilized for this portfolio will be of the highest credit quality and 
marketability supporting the Corporation's objectives of safety, liquidity and 
yield. 

B. Securities, when not matched to a specific liability, will be short-term 
and of a liquid nature to provide adequate cash flow for the Corporation. The 
portfolio shall be diversified to protect against credit and market risk in any 
one sector. Diversification requirements can be fully met through use of an 
authorized pool. The weighted average maturity on the pooled investment 
group will be no greater than six (6) months. Because the funds are pooled 
for investment purposes, the portfolio will address the varying needs of all 
funds in the pooled fund. 

VI. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

Board of Directors 

A. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) shall establish 
the Corporation’s investment policy and objectives, obtain such expert advice 
and assistance with respect to its actions as is necessary to exercise its 
responsibilities prudently, and monitor the actions of staff and advisors to 
ensure compliance with this Policy. It is the Board's intention that this Policy 
be carried out by those persons who are qualified and competent in their 
areas of expertise. 

B. The delegation of authority as provided below in no way diminishes the 
Board's ultimate responsibility as a fiduciary to follow the policies and 
objectives established by this Policy. 

C. Each member of the Board shall attend at least one training session 
relating to the person's responsibilities under the Act within six months after 
taking office or assuming duties. Training under this section may be provided 
by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board and include investment 
controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of 
investment portfolio, compliance with the Act and compliance with this Policy. 



4 

 
 
Investment Officer(s) 

A. The authority to manage the Corporation's investment program is 
granted to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or the President when the CEO 
and the President is not the same individual. The Board designates by 
resolution responsibility for the operation of the investment program to the 
Chief Financial Officer as the designated “Investment Officer”. 

B. The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all transactions 
undertaken and shall establish internal controls to regulate the activities of 
subordinate officials. Procedures should include reference to safekeeping, 
delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire 
transfer agreements, collateral/depository agreements and banking service 
contracts. Such procedures may include explicit temporary delegation of 
authority to persons responsible for investment transactions. 

C. The Investment Officer shall establish written procedures for the 
operation of the investment program consistent with this Policy. 

D.  The Investment Officer shall attend ten (10) hours of training within 
twelve (12) months of assuming the position and in each succeeding two-
year period and may receive the training from any independent source 
approved by the Board. Training is to include investment controls, security 
risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment portfolio, and 
compliance with the Act. 

E. The Investment Officer may temporarily delegate investment 
responsibilities to subordinate staff. Subordinate staff members must have a 
clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper 
actions. 

F. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as 
provided under the terms of this Policy and the procedures established by the 
Investment Officer. 

VII. ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

A. If an Investment Officer of the Corporation has a personal business 
relationship with a business organization offering to engage in an investment 
transaction with the Corporation (as described in Section 2256.005(i) of the 
Act), the Investment Officer shall file a statement disclosing that personal 
business interest with the Board and the Texas Ethics Commission. 

B. An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree by 
affinity or consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the 
Corporation shall file a statement disclosing that relationship with the Board 
and the Texas Ethics Commission. 



 

 5 

VIII. AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

A.  The Corporation shall maintain a list with a minimum of three qualified 
broker/dealers authorized to engage in investment transactions with the 
Corporation. This list of qualified brokers shall be reviewed, revised and 
adopted at least annually by the Board. 

B. Broker/dealers shall, at a minimum, provide information as required by 
the Investment Officer and provide evidence of SEC registration and NASD 
membership. 

C.  Any person/firm offering to engage in an investment transaction with 
the Corporation shall be provided a copy of this Policy. A certification in the 
form attached as Attachment A hereto or in any other form acceptable to the 
Corporation (a “Certification”) shall affirm that the person/firm: 

1. Has received and reviewed this Policy; and 

2. Acknowledged that the business organization has implemented 
reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment 
transactions that are not authorized by this Policy, except to the 
extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis of the 
makeup of the entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of 
subjective investment standards. 

D. The Investment Officer of the Corporation may not buy any securities 
from a person who has not delivered the signed Certification to the 
Corporation. 

E.  If the brokerage subsidiary of the banking services bank is used for 
purchase of securities, the securities should be safe-kept in trust to perfect 
delivery versus payment settlement. 

F. No less than every five years, the Corporation shall, through a 
competitive process chose a banking services institution to serve as its 
primary depository and a custodian for Corporation owned securities. 

IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

A. Notwithstanding any grant or program limitations to the contrary, the 
following are authorized investments of the Corporation: 

1. Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and 
instrumentalities including collateralized mortgage obligations 
(CMO). Debentures shall have a stated maturity not to exceed 
three (3) years. CMOs shall have a stated maturity not to 
exceed ten (10) years. 



6 

2. Certificates of Deposit issued by a state or national bank 
doing business in the State of Texas or a savings bank doing 
business in the State of Texas and are: 

a. Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or its successor; 

b. Secured by obligations of the US Government, its 
agencies and instrumentalities as further defined in 
Section XIII of this Policy; and 

c. Have a stated maturity not to exceed one year. 

3. Fully collateralized repurchase agreements and 
reverse repurchase agreements which: 

a. Have a defined termination date and are executed 
under the terms of a written Master Repurchase 
Agreement; 

b. Are secured by collateral defined in Section XIII of 
this Policy and held by an independent safekeeping agent 
approved by the Corporation; 

c. Require the securities being purchased be held in 
the Corporation's name; and 

d. Are executed with a primary government securities 
dealer, as defined by the Federal Reserve; 

The term of any reverse security repurchase agreement may not 
exceed 90 days after the date of the reverse. Money received by 
the Corporation from the reverse security repurchase agreement 
may be used to acquire authorized investments, but the 
maturity date of the investment acquired must not be later than 
the expiration date of the reverse 

4. SEC registered money market mutual funds. 

a. A money market mutual fund is an authorized investment 
if the fund: 

i. Is registered with and regulated by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission; 

ii. Has a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 
90 days or fewer; and 



 

 7 

iii. Includes in its investment objectives the 
maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1 for each 
share. 

b. The Corporation is not authorized to invest its funds or 
funds under its control in any money market mutual fund in an amount 
that exceeds 10 percent of the total assets of the mutual fund. 

5. Commercial Paper. Commercial paper is an authorized 
investment if the commercial paper if it: 

a. Has a stated maturity of ninety (90) days or fewer to its 
stated maturity; and 

b. Is rated not less than A-1/P-1 or equivalent by at least 
two nationally-recognized credit rating agencies, 

6. Uncollateralized Guaranteed Investment Contracts.  For 
funds that are pledged under a trust indenture for bonds issued 
by the Corporation, investment securities that are permitted 
under the terms of such trust indenture, including, but not 
limited to, uncollateralized investment agreements. 

7. Texas Local Government Investment Pools. 

Permitted constant dollar investment pools, as defined by the Act, are 
authorized under this policy if the investment pool: 

a. Is created to function as a money market mutual fund, 
marks its portfolio to market daily and strives to maintain a $1 
net asset value. 

b. If it is rated not less than AAA or AAA-m or equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. 

B. No additional securities or investments are authorized for Corporation 
use until this Policy has been amended and the amended policy has been 
adopted by the Board. 

C. All investment transactions shall require competitive bidding. 

D. To minimize loss of principal, securities which are downgraded in credit 
or become unauthorized after purchase should be monitored on a daily basis 
and may be sold prior to maturity after a prudent analysis of market 
conditions. 

E. Security swaps may be utilized for improvement in the quality, yield, 
or target duration in the portfolio but only if analysis proves a positive 
horizon value for the swap. 



8 

F. Any investment held prior to changes in this Policy that does not 
meet the guidelines of this Policy shall be exempted from the 
requirements of this Policy. However, at maturity or liquidation, such 
monies shall be reinvested only as provided by this Policy. 

X. UNAUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS. 

The following are not authorized investments: 

A. Interest only obligations whose payment represents the coupon 
payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-
backed security collateral and pays no principal (IO); 

B. Principal only obligations whose payment represents the principal 
stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral 
and bears no interest (PO); and 

C. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity 
date of greater than 10 years. 

D. Inverse floating collateralized mortgage obligations, the interest rate 
of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a 
market index (Inverses). 

XI. DIVERSIFICATION 

The Corporation will diversify its investments by security type and 
institution. With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, no more than 
50% of the Corporation's total investment portfolio will be invested in a 
single security type or single issuer. 

General diversification parameters will include: 

Type of Obligation 
Maximum 
Percentage 

of Total Portfolio U.S. Obligations 80% 
Obligations of U.S. Agencies 70% 
Certificates of Deposit (total) 25% 
Certificates of Deposit (by institution) 10% 
Repurchase Agreements 30% 
Money Market Mutual Funds 25% 
Commercial Paper (total) 30% 
Commercial Paper (by issuer) 10% 
Local Government Stable Net Asset 75% 



 

 9 

XII. EFFECT OF LOSS OF REQUIRED RATING 

An investment that requires a minimum rating under this Policy does not 
qualify as an authorized investment during the period the investment does 
not meet or exceed the minimum rating. The Corporation shall take prudent 
measures that are consistent with its Policy to evaluate possible liquidation 
of an investment that does not meet or exceed the minimum rating as 
market conditions dictate (Act Section 2256.021). However, the Corporation 
is not required to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of 
purchase (Act Section 2256.017). 

XIII. COLLATERALIZATION 

Collateralization will be required on all time and demand accounts above 
FDIC insurance levels and on repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate 
market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the 
collateralization margin level will be 102%. 

A. For time and demand deposits the following securities are authorized 
as pledged collateral: 

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and 
instrumentalities including mortgage backed securities meeting the 
bank test; 

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

3. Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are 
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith 
and credit of Texas or the United Sates or their respective agencies 
and instrumentalities; and 

4.  Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other 
political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its 
equivalent. 

B. For repurchase agreements, obligations of the U.S. Government, its 
agencies and instrumentalities including mortgage backed securities are 
authorized as collateral owned under the transaction: 

C.  Collateral shall always be held in safekeeping by an independent third 
party with whom the Corporation has a current custodial agreement executed 
under the terms of FIRREA (time and demand deposits). A clearly marked 
evidence of pledge or ownership must be supplied to the Corporation and 



10 

retained. The Corporation shall grant the right of collateral substitution, 
subject to receiving prior approval from the Investment Officer. 

D. It shall be the contractual liability of the counter-party pledging or 
selling the securities to monitor and maintain the appropriate 102% margin 
at all times. 

XIV. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 

All securities owned by the Corporation will be held by an independent third 
party custodian approved by the Corporation and under a current custody 
agreement. 

All security transactions will be executed on a Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) 
basis. This ensures that securities are deposited prior to the release of 
funds. Securities will be held by an independent third-party custodian and 
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. 

XV. INTERNAL CONTROLS 

A. Internal Controls 

The Investment Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
controls to ensure that the assets of the Corporation are protected from loss, 
theft, or misuse. The internal controls shall address the following points: 

1. Control of collusion, 

2. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record 
keeping. 

3. Custodial safekeeping. 

4. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members. 

5. Written confirmation of all transactions. 

In developing controls, the concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 

1. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and 

2. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management. 



 

 11 

B. Compliance Audit 

At least once every two years, the Corporation shall arrange for a 
compliance audit of management controls on investments and 
adherence to this Policy and the Act. 

1. The compliance audit shall be performed by the Corporation's 
internal auditor or by a private auditor. 

2. The results of the audit performed under this section shall be 
presented to the Board. 

3. The Corporation shall report the results of the audit performed 
under this section to the Office of the State Auditor not later 
than January 1 of each even-numbered year. The report shall 
be prepared in a manner as prescribed by the Office of the 
State Auditor. 

4. The Corporation shall also report to the Office of the State 
Auditor other information the state auditor determines 
necessary to assess compliance with laws and policies 
applicable to the Corporation's investment. 

C. Wire Transfers 

All wire transfers will be transacted under a written agreement. This 
agreement shall delineate controls, security provisions, and 
responsibilities of each party. 

XVI. REPORTING 

A. Quarterly Reports 

At least quarterly, the Investment Officer shall prepare and present to 
the Board an investment report, including a summary that provides a 
clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio and 
transactions made over the last quarter. This investment report will be 
prepared in a manner, which will allow the Board to ascertain whether 
investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to 
the Policy. The report must: 

1. Describe in detail the investment position on the date of the 
report; 

2. Be prepared jointly by all Investment Officers; 

3. Be signed by each Investment Officer; 



12 

4. Be prepared in compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) for each fund that states: 

a. The stated maturity date and call or reset date of each 
security; 

b. The book value and market value of each security at the 
beginning and end of the reporting period by type and market 
sector; 

c. Additions and changes in market value during the period; 

d. Fully accrued interest and total earnings for the reporting 
period; 

e. State the fund or pooled group for which each individual 
investment was acquired; and 

5. State the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to 
the investment strategy expressed in this Policy and the Act. 

B. Audit Report 

An independent auditor shall formally review the investment reports 
prepared by the Investment Officer under this Policy at least annually and 
that auditor shall report the result of the review to the Board. 

C. Performance Standards 

The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters 
specified within this Policy and the cash flow analysis. The maximum dollar 
weighted average maturity of the portfolio is six months. In order to measure 
performance and the level of risk in the portfolio, a benchmark of the six-
month Treasury Bill for the comparable period will be reported quarterly. 

D. Market Value 

The Investment Officer will obtain market prices used to calculate market 
value from independent, recognized published sources or from other 
qualified professionals. 

E. The Investment Officer shall present to the Board a report on 
changes to the Act no later than 180 days after the last regular session of 
the legislature. 



 

 13 

XVII. POLICY ADOPTION 

The Investment Policy shall be reviewed and adopted by resolution of the 
Board at least annually. The Board must approve and adopt any 
amendments made thereto. The Board shall adopt by written resolution a 
statement that it has reviewed the investment policies and strategies and 
note any changes made. 





A-1 

ATTACHMENT A 

CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF 
 TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
 
As a qualified representative of the Firm (name of “Firm”). 
 
I, and the broker covering the account, acknowledge that we have received and 
reviewed the Corporation's Investment Policy dated _________________. 
 
We acknowledge that the Firm has implemented reasonable procedures and 
controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted between the 
Firm and the Corporation that are not authorized by the Corporation's Investment 
Policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis of 
the Corporation's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective 
investment standards. 
 
Dated this _________ day of __________, __________. 
 
 

Signature:         
 
Name:         
 
Title:         

 
 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
Authorized Broker/Dealer List 

 
April 2007 

 
 
 
The authorized broker/dealer list for Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation is shown below.  Each of 
these firms, and the individual covering the account, will be sent the current Investment Policy.  In 
accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act (TX Gov’t Code 2256.005(k)) before any broker/dealer 
transacts business with the Corporation it will have had to certify in writing to a review of the Policy and 
have certified that procedures are in place to assure compliance with that Policy.   
 
The Corporation's Policy establishes specific criteria for the brokers and requires that the list of 
broke/dealers be approved annually by the Board.  Attachment A of the Policy is the certification form used 
for this purpose.  Patterson & Associates maintains the brokerage compliance files for the Corporation. 
 
When any material changes are made to the Investment Policy the new Policy is sent out for re- 
certification. 
 
  
 Barclay’s Capital 

Citigroup-Smith Barney 
Goldman Sachs 
JP Morgan Chase 

 Merrill Lynch 
 Mizuho Securities 
 Wells Fargo 
  
 
 



Tab 6 
 

Presentation and Discussion of the Corporation’s 2006 Annual 
Report. 

 
The Annual Report will be provided at the meeting. 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  __ 

 
TO CONFIRM  LAURA ROSS (PREVIOUSLY LAURA 
SMITH) AS SECRETARY OF THE CORPORATION 

 
WHEREAS, Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) was duly 

created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Texas 
Government Code, Title 10, Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y;   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION THAT: 

1.  Confirmation of Secretary of the Corporation.  Laura Ross (previously known as 
Laura Smith) is hereby confirmed and ratified as the Secretary of the Corporation.  Laura Ross, 
as Secretary of the Corporation, is authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the 
Corporation, any and all documents or instruments necessary to carry out her functions as 
Secretary of the Corporation. 

 
2.   Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 

date of its adoption. 

Adopted and approved this 13th day of April, 2007. 

 

______________________________________ 
      Jerry Romero 

Chair, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 


	Official Board Packet Cover
	Agenda
	President's Report
	Executive Vice President's Report
	Single Family Lending Report
	Multifamily Lending Report
	Marketing and Development Report
	Financial Report
	Tab 1
	Tab 2
	Tab 3
	Tab 4
	Tab 5
	Tab 6
	Tab 7

